
BEFORE THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION III

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

IN RE:

United States Postal Service,

Respondent,
Docket No. RCRNCWA 03-201 0-0026

Norfolk Vehicle Maintenance Facility
600 Church Street
Norfolk, Virginia 23501

:>

Facility.

CONSENT AGREEMENT
!
,

Preliminary Statement

'.-0

This Consent Agreement ("CA") is entered into by the Director of the 0 fice of
Enforcement, Compliance, and Environmental Justice, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency,
Region III ("EPA" or "Complainant") and the United States Postal Service ("USPS" or
"Respondent"), pursuant to Sections 309 and 311 of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 US.c.
~~ 1319 and 1321, and Sections 9006 and 9007 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
("RCRA"), as amended, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6991 e and 699.1 f, and the Consolidated Rules of Practice
Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or
Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. including, specifically 40
C.F.R.§§22.13(b)and.18(b)(2)and(3). I! !

I,

This CA and the accompanying Final Order (collectively "CAFO") simultaneously
commence and conclude an administrative proceeding against Respondent to resolve alleged
violations of the CWA, ReRA, and the authorized Virginia underground storage tank regulations
in connection with Respondent's Norfolk Processing and Distribution Center, located in Norfolk,
Virginia (the "Facility").
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RCRA Background
,

,

On September 28, 1998 (effective October 28, 1998) (63 Fed. Reg. 51528), pursuant to
Section 9004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6991c, and 40 C.F.R. Part 281, Subpart A, the
Commonwealth of Virginia was granted final authorization by EPA to administer a state

,

underground storage tank management program in lieu of the Federal underground storage tank
management program estahlished under Subtitle I ofRCRA, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6991 ~6991 i. The
provisions ofthe Commonwealth of Virginia underground storage tank management program,
through this final authorization, have become requirements of Subtitle I ofRCRA and are,
accordingly, enforceable by EPA pursuant to Section 9006 ofRCRA, 42 U.s.c.§ 6991e. The
provisions of the Commonwealth of Virginia's auth~rized underground storage tank program are
citcd as Underground Storage Tanks: Technical Stanclards and Corrective Action Requirements
("VA UST Regulations"), 9 VAC § 25-580-10 et seJ. . i. '

: I ' I
i i

Respondent was previously notified regardin~ the RCRA allegations recited hcrein under
cover letter dated January 9, 2008. In accordance with Section 9006(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. §
699Ie(a)(2), EPA has notified the Commonwealth o~Virginia of EPA's intent to enter into a
CAFO with Respondent resolving the RCRA violations set forth herein. ! •

I !

CWA Background I
,

, i
i •

Section 301(a) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1311(a), prohihits the discharge of"pollutants"
from a point source within the meaning of Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1362(6), into
the waters of the United States by any person except 'in accordance with certain sections of the
CWA, or in compliance with, inter alia, a National P~llutant Discharge Elimination ("NPDES")
permit issued hy EPA or an authorized state pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.c.
§ 1342. Under Section 402(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C;. § 1342(a), the Administrator of EPA may
issue an NPDES permit that authorizes the discharge of pollutants into waters of the United
States, subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in such permits, including eff1uent
limitations, but only upon compliance with applicable requirements of Section 301 of the CWA,

, ,

33 U.S.c. ' 1311, or under such other conditions as the Administrator determines are necessary
~ I I

to carry out the provisions of the CWA. I !

. I

Section 402(k) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1342(k), provides that compliance with the
terms and conditions ofa pem1it issued pursuant (0 that section shall be deemed compliancc
with, inter alia, Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.s.c. § 1311. Effluent limitations, as defined in
Section 502(11) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(11), ~re restrictions on the quantity, rate, and
concentration of chemical, physical, biological, and qther constituents of wastewater discharges.
Section 402(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1342(b), authorizes EPA to delegate permitting and
inspection authority to States that meet certain requirements. Virginia is authorized by the
Administrator of EPA, pursuant to Section 402(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § I342(b), to
administer the NPDES permit program for discharged into navigable waters within its ~
jurisdiction. The Virginia Department ofEnvironme~tal Quality ("VADEQ") iS,the "approval
authority" as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 403.3. " I

I

I
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I

I I i

Section 311(j)(1)(C) of the CWA, 33 ns.c. 1321(j)(l)(C), provides th'at the President
: I

shall issue regulations "establishing procedures, methods,' and equipment and other requirements
for equipment to prevent discharges of oil from Vessels and from onshore and offshore
facilities, and to contain such discharges " 40 C!F.R.Part 112, which includes the Spill
Prevention, Control and Countermeasure ("SPCC") fegulations and which impl~mentsSection
311 (i) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1321 (i), sets forth piocedures, methods and req*irem~nts to
prevent the discharge of oil from non-transportation-~elatedfacilities into or upo'n the navigable

I , ,

waters of the United States, within the meaning of Section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c.
§ 1362(7), and 40 C.P.R. § 110.1, and adjoining shoielin~s in such quantities th~t by r~gulation
have been determined may be harmful to the public health or welfare or environinent of the

I : : :

United States by owners or operators who are engaged in drilling, producing, gathering, storing,
processing, refining, transferring, distributing or conkuming oil or oil products. ,These:

I ' I I

regulations took effect on January 10, 1974. In prol1)-u1gating 40 C.P.R. § 110.3; which
implements Section 311(b)(4) of the CWA, 33 U.S.G. § 1321(b)(4), EPA has determined that
discharges of harmful quantities include oil discharg~s that cause either (I) a vicllationof
applicable water quality standards or (2) a film, sheeh uP9n, or discoloration orthe surface of the
water or adjoining shorelines, or (3) a sludge or emulsion'to be deposited beneath the surface of
the water or upon adjoinirg shorelines. I ' 1

, , , , ,

Pursuant to SectlOn 309(g)(l )(A) of the CWA, 33 iU.SC. §§ 1319(g)( I )(A), EF:A has
consulted with the Commonwealth of Virginia regarding this action, and, in addition, will mail a
copy of this document to the appropriate VADEQ official. ,I

1 . I.. I

I General PrOVISIOns
I ' I

Por purposes of this proceeding only, Respoddent, admits the jurisdictional allegations set

forth in this CAPO. I" I I.

' ' I '

Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific' factual allegations and conclusions of
law set forth in this CAFO, except as providJd in :Paragraph I, above. I I

I EPA' Id,·1 . h I h I I f h'Respondent agrees not to contest s Jun~ letlon WIt respect to t e ~xecutlon 0 t IS
CA, the issuance of the attached Pinal Order,' or tIle enforcement of the CAFO,

I f h' . ' I R 1 dl h b I I. I . hFor the purposes 0 t IS proceedmg on y, espon ent ere y express y WaIves, ItS ng t to
contest the allegations set forth in this Conseht Agreement and any right

l

' to appeal the
accompanying Final Order. 'I ' I

! ' " I 'I ' ,
I I I '

Respondent consents to the issuance of this G'AFO and agrees to comply with its terms
I I I I

and conditions.ii' I

I ! '. I

Respondent shall bear its own costs and attorney's fees. I, 'I

I I'"
• I "h I h .. I' II' . hRespondent certIfies to EPA by ItS sIgnature erell1 t at It IS present y mj comp lance WIt

the provisions of RCRA and CWA referenc~d herein. I

I I

I I
I !

,
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9.
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II.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

i ~
!.

, :' I

The provisions ofthis CAFO shall be binding upon Respondent, its officers, directors,

employees, succe~sors, and assigns., I I ' , II i I

This CAFO shall not relieve Respondent ofi]s ob\igation to comply witli all applicable
provisions of federal, state or local law, nor shall it be construed to be a tuling on. or
determination of, :my issue related to any fe&ral, :state or local pem1it; n'or does this
CAFO constitute a waiver, suspension or morification of the requircmerits of the CWA
or RCRA, or any regulations promulgated thereunder. : I

I i I Ii. I

EPA's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law I

I ,I I •. 1 I

In accordance with the Consolidated Rules a\ 40 CF.R. §§ 22. 13(b) and 122. I 8(b )(2) and
(3), Complainant makes the findings offact and conclusions oflaw which follow.

1 "I I I I
Respondent is the owner and operator of the Norfolk Vehicle Maintenance Facility, 600

, ,

Church Street, Nirfolk, Virginia 23501 (the raCjlity"), 'f I

EPA conducted a'multi-media inspection ofRespbndent's Facility on August 3-4, 2005.

iii I ' " I

I

COUNT I (RCRA ~UBTlTLEI) '11 I

, . I I " ,
Paragraphs 1-12 afthis CAFO are incorporated by refcrence as though fully sel forth

herei n. I • I · I I

Respondent is an 'independent estab lishment lof the executivc branch of the Go,verllment
of the United States (Sec 39 U.S.c. § 201) arid is 'a "person" as defined by Section
900l(6)ofRCRA,42U.S.C.§6991(6). I ,; 'I

I ' I ' II
i ~ I " , ! I

Respondent is, and at the time of the violations alleged in this CAFO, was the ,"owner"
1 ' ,

and/or "operator" of five "underground storage tanks" CUSTs" and "UST systems"), as
defined in Section 9001 (l), (3), and (4) ofReRA', 42 U.S.c. § 6991 (1 ), b), arld (4), and
9 VAC § 25-580~ IO. which are located outside ot;the Vehicle Maintenahce Fa~ility at the
Facility. These tanks were identified by thelFacility as Tanks 1,2,3, 4J and 5,. Tank I, a
10,000 gallon tank, was installed on SeptemjJer 1! 1991, and contained qiesel at the time
of the EPA inspection. Tank 2, a 10,000 gallon tank. was installed on S'eptember l, 1991,
and contained diesel at the time ofthe EPA i'nspection. Tank 3, a 10,000 gallon tank, was
installed on September I, 1991, and contain~d ga,soline at the time ofthf EPA inspection.
Tank 4 a 750 gallon tank, was installed on September 1,1991, and contained used oil at
the tim~ of the EPA inspection. Tank 5, a 1,:000 gallon tank, was install:ed on 'September
1,1991, and contained used oil at t.he time of the EPA inspection. I I'.

I ' I I' ' i
Respondent's USTs referenced in Paragraph IS, above, arc and ~ere at all times relevant
hereto "petroleum UST systems" used to sto're "r~gulated substances" a~ defined in 9
VAC 25-580-10" and Section 9001 (2) of RORA, '42 U.S.C. § 69;n (2). I

'I, ii I4':
1

I I.. _
,
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20.
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*I' ,I
Pursuant to 9 VA\, 25-580-130.A. and C., owners and operators ornew and cxisting
UST systems must provide a method or com~inatiSn of methods ofrclea1e deldction
monitoring that m~ets the requirements describcd h, erein. ., :)1.· I'

9 VAC § 25-580-140.2 provides, in:pertinentlpartJthatundergr~1~dpipirg thaI routinely
contams regulated substances must be momtored for releases In a manner that meets one
of the following requirements: j ·11:' " ji I I

a, Pressurized piping. Underground piping that conveys regulated substances
under pres.sure must: : !. ,if";,; '" '. !"n·· I I

(1) Be equipped with an automatic .line leak detector conducted in
actordance with subdivision II of9iVAC 25-580-),70; an~ I

(2)' Have an annual line tightness t~st conducted in accordance with
subdivision 2 of9 VAC 25-580-17,0 or have monthly mo~itorin!g
conducted in accordance withlsubdivision 3 of9 VAC 25f580-1'70.

b. Suctio~ piping. Underground piping that conveys regulated substan1ces under
suction mbst either have a line tightn~ss tdst conducted at least eyery three years
and in accprdance with subdivision 210f91vAC 25-580-170. or Lise a ~onthly
monitoring method conducted in accordan'ce with subdivIsion 3 elf 9 VAC 25
580-170. ,No release detection is req~ired ifor suction piping thatliS designed and
constructed to meet the followmg stardarqs: '. . ii- , I' I

(I) The bclow-grade piping operatys at less than atmospheric p~essure;

(2) The below-grade piping is! slop;ed so that the contents Ilof the!pipc will
drain back into the storage tank iqhe suction is relcased; I

(3) Only onc check valve is irlcluded in each suction line! I

(4) The check valve is located directly below and as clos~ as practical to
the suction pump; and I "'l~!I" >,. , : tl' I I
(5) A method is provided that

l
allo'j's compliance ,with subdivisions 2 b (2)

thrUgh (4) of this s~ction to rret~i.ly,~et~rmi~lt . I

At the time of the EPA inspection, 'the piping'~ss~~iated with Ta,'lks 1,2, and 3 was
pressurized pipinpand the piping a,ssociatedjwithl T~nk~ 4 and ,5 :~as sudtion piping

I l' ' " . ./ u ~ 'if, I I
At the time of the EPA inspection, 'Responddnt wa~ using interst'itial monitoring as its
leak detection method for the piping associated With Tanks I, 2,3, 4, an1d 5, irl
accordance with 9 VAC 25-580-170.3 (40 elF.Rj § 280.44(c)) and 9 V+C 25J580-1607
(40 C.F.R. § 280.43(g)). At the time of the fPA inspection, Respondent was not using
any other method ofleak detection for the piping! associated with Tanksl1, 2. 3, 4. and 5.

! I 'll~; > " j r! I I
With respect to the piping associated with Trnks( 2, 3, 4, and 5, any leak fro,m the
interstitial space petween piping walls was qesiglled to flow to a,sump.jEach pfthese
sumps associated with Tanks 1,2,3,4, and 5 haq a sump sensor to detect a lefk from
piping. At the time ofthe EPA inspection, dach of the sump sensors as~oeiated with
Tanks 1,2, 3, 4, and 5 were improperly plae:ed i~ the sumps as tlley we~e plac,bd too high
in relation to thebottom of the sump. Respondent's method ofrelease detection was

, i' 5, 1;::~il~s~;:~;i}"lll
,!' 'r~"~,vl,

I
I

I

I~_ .. _ H
IL
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22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

2S.

29.

30.

31.

:1
I H

;j

I ' 11
I '!
I

,I
i 'I

I

i II'.' . ,p .
inadequate because the sump sensors were placed too high in relation to the bottom of the

sump and they COrd not function effectively 10 dl%.~t ~ leak. ! .11'" I

At the time of the EPA Inspection, Respondent was not properly conducting interstitial

monitoring for the
l

piping associate~with Ta1~~ 1
1
,;::,3, 4, a~d ~ ..jl . . .

Respondent violated 9 VAC 25-5S0-140.2 (40 C.F:.R. § 280.41) by failing to properly
perform release detection for the piping assodiated with Tanks 1,2, 3, 4, land 5 'at the

Facilitv. I . .r. : .. j" ;. . I Ii .' !

~ I r ! "'ir{·':>;:·if":'~~:: ,;",'·,i:.¥ :-~.-, I

: COUNT II (~W~-STr1:;A:TER) III .'. •
~:;:~Ph' 123Thi

' CAFa"" iioo,'J'OmldS4~;:'"" "'tch fully OCI [0",

By letter dated May 6, 2004, V ADEQ informed t~~'Fa~ilitytha~ il was eligiblelfor
coverage under the Virginia Pollutant Dischatge Elimination System ("~PDES")General
Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associatdd with Industrial Activity ('1'Genetal
Permit"). The regulations pertaining to the dener~1 Permit can be found lat 9 ViAC 25
151-10 et seq. The General Permit's effectiv~ dat~ was .July I, 2004, and its expiration
date is .June 30, 2Q09. VADEQ assigned pen-hit n~mber VAR050301 to jthe Fdcility
("Facility Permit"). At the time of the EPA il~spection, the Facility Permit was'in effect.

! I I' 1! I
Section III of the Facility Permit, as dictated by 9 ~AC 25-151-70 and 9 VAC I25-151-
SO, requires that Respondent prepare a StormlWater Pollution Prevention Plan I

("SWPPP") for the permitted facility and the perniittec is required to imlJlemelit the

SWPPP as a condition of the pcmlit., . "Il, ...i! .

Section III of the Facility Permit sets forth specific requirements that must be

incorporated into a SWPPP.:. ·.l t,"},. ' .: ~.'. I
I i '-'!; ,-' , ,H
I .' ': ."i~- . "11 I

Section III.B.6.b.('I)(e) of the Facility Permitirequires the Respondent to Iconduct routine
facility inspection~, no less than on ,a quarterly ba~is.. '. . 'Ii, '. I L· . t, •

1 'I. .

Section lII.E. of the Facility Permit 'requires acon\prehensive site compliance evaluation

at least once a year ! !' ':I~'~' :11 .' I i

For calendar year 2004. Respondent failed to conduct and/or dOCLlmcnt its quarterly
routine inspections. Respondent's failure to condilet and/or document it~ routihe
quarterly inspections is a violation of 9 VAC 125 -1!51-70 and 9 VAC 25-1

1

51-sd.

I j' ·!"i'1"')··1i I I

For calendar year 2004, Respondent failed to conduct and/or document its annual
comprehensive sit'e evaluation. Respondent's fail/Ire to conduct and/or docum6nt its
annual comprehensive site evaluation is a vio'latioh of9 VAC 25,,151-70 and 91VAC 25-
151-S0. . ,n

:l.·
: jt

I' _J
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Th F
'1' , c'l . I !h:: If' 'rl

e aCl Ity s ,al ure to Imp ement t e reqUIrements 0 the Permit, whIch are

';;\":~ :;299~~1~~~.1;i~:;'9 ~§~1'; i;~)5~;(i;;'~',,"'l;r :',1.'""1""""'
I eOUNT'm (eWtSP?~1: '.':. l..ri}.r: I
I 1· !,je., ,.' ,.. 1 Jr'

Paragraphs 1-32 of this CAFO are incorporated hYi reference as though fully set forth
herein. 1 • ...I;~) ;.",iji. ,I I

Respondent is the owner and operaL, :WithJ;~;:'~eaJ~~'~;~~clLo~311 (a)(6) of the

I
I '"CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1321 (a)(6), and 40 C.FR § 11:2.2, of an onshore facihty. A discharge

from the Facility could reasonably be expected to 'impact the Eliz'abeth River ill a hamlful

quantity..1 :i "}J..;;.,rt·.'..~''f!;.'.'~'J.'.";'~."'.:. :' :;..•.~'.•;.. '.' '."Y' I I' II . I I . ".,1" ,,"if""",'''' "., ,", .' ..'i j" .' " ..··"',l\ii':i.:o .. ·"i .... ·• I

At the time ofthe.EPA inspection, the 'FaCi1i1y had '~~~gg~egatc ~bove-groundlstoragc
capacity greater than 1,320 gallons of oil in centainers, each with a sheilicapacity of at
least 55 gallons, Since the time of the EPA inspe~tion, the Facility has reduced its oil

storage capacity ~elow the SPCC rrguiatory tt:~~t~~}tt; .... 'll.···· I I
The Elizabeth Ri~er is a navigable water of the United States, within thd meaning of40

...... I i

C.FR § 1122 ajd Section 502(7)nhe Cl~" 31~N:'C. § 1~6f) I

Respondent is engaged in drilling, ~roducing, ~a;~~;ing, storing, br~cessing, r~fining,
transferring, distr,ibuting, using or ~onsuming oil or oil products located at the 'Facility.

.. ! I 1,;1 ". :11 I

The Facility is a 11On-transportatio~-related fac'ilit1ywithin the ~~aning ~f 40 G. FR Ij

112.2, Appendix A, as incorporate? by refer~nc':"J\'::i;h:~40C.fllj.,' 112.2. II
1 I I .1 •• '.4"" 1 ',' "I~.' Ii J' f I '-"" '".,,' , - , .,.

The Facility is a non-transportation-related onshQre facility which, due to its location,
could reasonably be expected to discharge oil to 1~avigablewater of thb Unit1ed States or
its adjoining shorelines in a hamlfll1 quantit~("al)s:CC-regulatf'd facil1ity").1

Ii: l,:'t~'w "!~ I

Respondent began operating the Facility in lheearly 1980s, ::i I

I "j'i""~""~~ , .' i J' .' "1

Pursuant to the CWA and 40 c.F.~, § 112.11(~),';~~~~e timeof';~1 EPA!nspec,lion,
Respondent, as the owner and operator of an SPC:C-regulated facility, was subject to the

SPCC regulations, I I . ·t,(;~.~,~.j', ...··:.'1L , II 1.

1

I ' r I" ':J,;J~':'~~f:}?f';'--r:';!,!,:, !

40 C. F.R, Ij I 12.:7 requires the owner or operato]; of an SPCC-regulatedl facility to prepare, , , ,I I ' I. I .
an spec Plan \\ChIch has full management ~pprol~N at a level o~ authonty to comlmt the
necessary resources to fully Implement the Plan~),,;,/I,j.jl ....! I

At the time oftJe EPA inspection: th~ FaJ~~'~it~~·~ Plan dii n~t hare fUll!
management approval at a level of authonty to commIt the resources to fully

I
. I';, 7 'll~jl I

, ~:j'+,-,~

I

. I

I
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44.

45.

46.

47.

i ::bi} ,.1
i ' I i1
f ." ~
1.':" '~i _:~'" ,~:~,~ ;,,~~l>
.1., _', 1;' lo'i p t.~ ,

implement the plan. i I jit:' .::' ~"~'1:~; ,
I ::. tt'if :ll'

Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 112.7 by faqing tp have full man'agement approval for
its SPCC Plan at a;level of authorityto commit thel nec~ssary reso,urces td fully I

implement the Plj at the time ofthf: EfA in~~ec,Yfi~~,t;",'~,:',1':I,i,'.,:'l,i,~', •••~':. . '

I

CIVIL PENALTY/i,¥':;ii,f .j·'~i, :
! I I';ff~*' f" ". .:'It ."

Respondent consents to the assessment of a cilvil Prnalty of FORTY ON~

THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED AND FIFTY F,IGHT DOLLARS ($41,558.00) in
full satisfaction ofall claims for civil penaltie~ for!'the violations alleged iln the 1bove
three counts ofthi~ CAFO. Respondent mustlpay .l1ecivil penalty no lat6r thali SIXTY
(60) calendar days after the date on which this CAFO is mailed oi' hand-deliver6d to
Respondent. In or:der to avoid the assessment] of idterest, adminis'trative dosts ahd late
payment penalties lin connection with such cilil pe:nalty, Respond~nt mu~t pay the civil
penalty no later than SIXTY (60) calendar daifs after the date on which this CAFO is

;::It::::I:i:-::c:~eddi::::::~d:tco~H~~!1:~~~::;;·t!t~t:jincluding, but

not limited to: the statutory factors of the seri6usn~ss of Respondent's vi61atiods and any
good faith efforts by Respondent to comply +th all applicable requirem~nts aslprovided
in RCRA Section 9006(d), 42 U.S.c. § 699Ie(d), ind EPA's Penalty Gui'danceifor
Violations of UST Regulations ("UST GuidaAce")! dated Novemb,rr 4, I ~90. E,PA has
also considered thc Adjustments a/Civil Pelw:/lieshr In(hl/ioll and llI1plementi~gIhe
Debt Collectioll Improvement ACI of 1996 ("OCTAl'). as set forth in 40 c.lF.R. ~art 19.
and the Septembe~ 21, 2004 memorandum by Acting EPA Assistant Adn\inistr~tor
Thomas V. Skinner entitled, Modifications to EPAI Pellaill' PolicIes 10 lil1~/eme'rttlhe
Civil Monetarv PellaIll' Inilaliem Adjuslmenl Rule ("2004 Skinner MemotandurIJ") which
specify that f~r violati~ns'occurring after JanJary 30.1997, statutory penllities ~nd
penalties under the UST Guidance were increhsed 110% above the' maxim'um aniount to
account for inflation and, statutory penalties for viblations occurring afte!' Mar~h 15,

2004,. were increa~ed by an additi~ni~1 17.23o/0,.~~o,~i,~.~.:~,e m, a,xil~ur,l~amOl,lnt to ,lccount for

mflatIon. I I' '1" "Fi!'·~::;i·:'i'~:.:' .j '11· . I I
i ' :-:':'l"~:::.;:,~J,.:)yr,." '·l:+. - .: I

For the violations alleged in Count II, EPA considered a number of factors including, but
not limited to, the statutory factors set forth ill Sec/ion 309(g) of the CWt, 33 USc. ~
1319(g), i. e., the nature. CIrcumstances, exten/ andigravlty of the y~olatlOr(s), I .

Respondent's ablltty to pay. pnor hIstory of compltance, degree ot culpabilIty, ,eCOnOlTIlC
benefit or savings resulting from the violatiOlJs, an'dsuch other matters ad justite may
require. EPA con~idered the Illterim Clean rkater Act Seltlemen<:ren"It~'Poliey (1995).
EPA has also considered the DCIA,as ,set forth in 40 CF.R. Part;19, andl the 2004
Skinner Memoran?um which specify that for !vio11tions occurring; after Jfnuar~ 30, 1997.
statutory penall1es and penaltIes under the Intfnm iClean Water A?t Settlj'ment ,Pollcy
were increased 10% above the statutory maximum, amount to account fo~ inflation and
statutory penalties' for violations occurring afler March IS,' increased by an

!

1·r 8
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~;.!·'f

~;j,!~~Ji$' .. . '.
additional 17.23% above the maximum'amount to account for inflation"":: '. .

I
.

'1', : Jjtt~'~I·~~~E'J.~:'J~.f·,,0';·,,: .....
'~', . ,,.;t,,· ,; .;;,.jt1l'Fl'." . N:7i-'\""I'!'4f~~~',.'4'":., .

For the violation alleged in Count 111, EPA considered the statutory penalty factors sct
forth at Section 3 I ,'(b)(8) of the CW,A, 33 U.S.c.. §.1 321 (b)(8), i r, the sbrioushess of the
violation or violatwns. the economic, benefit t?,the!\iolator, ira~Y:tesulti?g fro+ the
VIOlatIon, the degn:e of culpablhty 1I1volved, any other penalty tor. the same mcident, any
history of prior violations. the natur~, extent, ind degree of succds of an~ efforts of the
violator to minimi~e or mitigate the ~ffects ofIthe qi~charge, the esonomit imp~ct of the
pcnalty on the VIOlator, and any other matters (is JustIce may requIre. EP+consIdered the
Civil Penalty Potier/or Section 311(b)(3) and Section 311(j) o/th~ Clean Wate~ Act
(1998). EPA has ;Iso considered the DClA, Js setlf()~h in '40 C.l{R. Parll9, ahd the
2004 Skinner Memorandum which ~pecify th~t fo~:::iolations oCc}.lrring alter Japuary 30,
J997, statutory penalties wcrc increased 10% kbOVf. the statutory maximum amount to
account for inflaticin and statutory penalties fdr~i91.~ti.ons occur;il;g after!Marcl/15.
2004, were mcreased by an additIOnal 1;7.23o/d above then;axllllum amount to '1ccount for
. fl . I . .·t· 'J I
m atlOn. ,·:i:f~lt':(~.. .. ,.: '.
Payment of the ci~il penalty a:nount'of'S38.814.O,Q ror f~unts J,a\id . al:\ove,~hall be
made by either cashier's check, certified cheeR or electronic wire transfer! in the .

following manner I ':{·''':lIHl;:f~~i~ ", . ".•... ..' .
a. All paymel;ts by Responden\ shall ref~renc,e its name and :~ddress and thc Docket

Number of. this action (DOCke.t N.,0: R.....GR~...I.. C;'YV...'.'."j,.A.•,:.23,;2.,. ?1i.o.jj,-.?,02.6);
I . ~1·i~n;_tt,,:~~::C(Jll':<!;1~;i~"'n;i

b. All checks shall be made payable to"~ited Stat~~ T~eis~;y':;';
! ! ~.,_. '-ll';:;;:>1,s~,,?:;;-1.r-I' ,~'~ "~'-·":~~~~J;.~~pi~::~'~:;J2ti
: '") '~" ,',' ~',j.~.? >Il"~,, ·'J!!t',7;'~'''''"~;".~>,,.. ~";"[~;""" ..!" .:

c. All payments made by check. and sent b.r ular maIl shaU be addressed and

rnai Ied to: I\:;';!:?~~:'~" •. '
US. Environmental Protection Agenc,
Fines and ~enalties'>~;.tlii!:,:, .
Cincinnati ,Finance cente.r,. 'I:'.(.'...."
P.O. Box 979077 '.··,~N

I '",

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 ..

I 'F.~'
The Customer Service contact for the
Pearson at 314-418-4087. . i

i····>w'·; .
d. All payments made by check al)d sent b

addressed rnd sent to:. ,tl(~' "
U.S. Envir~nmental P;o't;~tion':Age~cy, Fines and Penalti'es

I I., ,-

U.S. Bank: \;;-H,
I005 Con~ention Plaza' ,i;; j

Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL"':

I

49.

48.
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i

I

I
I'

It I

St. Louis, MO 63101 I' . I

I I -
I I I I ~. II j

The Customer Service contact for the above method of payment IS Natalie
Pearson at 314-4 I8-4087. I I

I. ' t ! " . ".. '. . ..
All electromc WIre transfer payments shall be directed to:

I : ',Jllfr
Federal Reserve Bank of New iYo
ABA ~ 021030004 \: .
Account = 6801 07271 :
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33 •
33 Liberty Street 1:1 '
Ne;v York, NY 10045 I " •. • I

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 0727
EnVironmental Protection Agencl' . ~-\' ,1 r~" I

'I' 1,1, I " ;t;t~ t:,~S';~~~~~' :;~·"i·· ,
I :r' " y'f I

The Federal Reserve Bank of New Y~rk Cp.~~o.T_e~S~rvicelh?ne numger for the

above meTOd of payment IyIi-~2~:~~O'(t' . . c'!~J~,\r;;:: 'i • I

~~::i~ia~~ft~~;~~~;~~~~~~~I~:d1~f~~~i~2;E~si~*ftf~':,~ISO knowr as

Automated Cleannghouse (AG:H) for receiving U.S currency

PNC Bank I,' \ ~,. ~l· ""1" \I £~:~ ' ....~:'fir; "
808 17th Street NW I ' ': "f' " . I

W~shll1gton. DC 20~741 .~ ~'l~; ,:J j
! ) I :l" ."';.~~, ,~I ~,

ABA ~ 051036706! : "lid.,.)!" " . 'I
Transaction Code 22 - checking,".. • , .

Environmental Prot~ction A,gbn,c' "'j,
Account 310006 j, '1' . ~,;:.l~iti,: .' .' ,. ,.,. .,' "" .
CTX Format I" ·1·.··'';. - w·•• '··I" 1·1 I, ,. . .••...;.." £"li' ,·,-1·" ·jf· • .... •' I

I ", > r·- ~'?;;-))i~,~~~:\~>;"~:~::~~:;-;'r:?,"\ 'I .' - '

The custo,mer Service contfct ,ror the.t".~.,~?ve m~}~"~.~.;a,.r.l"ay,.".,,,m,, ~n.tis Jesse White at
301-887-6548. " I Ji,l}~'~·'i",;,,*•. ,!·:IIw.i,;..1 I

II 1\' ! ' : >". ,,~:~:t:_,,~~~ ,1'; ,.' ;~;~,,,~,~~'S~::~/;4~i'(·:;\:'';!l· I

There is an on-line payment option arailapl.ethrough the.Departrlent Sf the ,
Treasury. I; This paym~nt OP,tlO~ can ge aC9e,ssed from: VvW~Y.G~2.'L. Enter
sfo 1.1 in the search held apd ?OrnPl~t~,}IVS~u;;.~~~el~~ mthe ,fonn I

At the sa~le time that any pl:y~el~?lt~~~;~~'~~~tl~h~ll'mlii coJies of any

;,::::;:,~;~:,g ,h~k 0' wr~' ,""f,,,"b,<mrl1'~~'i{,;I~\m'ici wocc

I, ,
" .~!

, "

h

g.

f.

e.
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a.

c.

b.

H
,. ,,~l: :1

, ,
Ms .. Lydia Guy' .', 'T, ," i"

I I I ,

Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO)
U.S. Environmental Protection A

, '

Region III .;~~L j
165,0 Arch Street '!i I'
Phl1adelphla, PA 19103·2029

I ' ,.Jl~~ ;
and to . ~ r

I ' " ,i" ']
Dalliel L. Isales (3EQIO)
Environmental ScienCe Center
U.S. Environmental ~rotection Agency, Region III
701: Mapes Road ,.J1' "'1;,;

I f" , '

Fort Meade, MD 20755·5350 , .. '
I ;' 'tP;1";~!~~, .,.. ' :fIt,·

Payment of the ci\il penalty amount, of,$2,71180, gL~.ount III,' a\?ove, sl\all bel made by
either cashier's check, certified check or electronic wire' transfer, ih the fdllowing manncr:

I,: '!~!'j';"i~~~·' .",.:~.1~iil~~:!:j ··1 '
All payments by Responden\ sh~1l ref'irencle"its name and ;~ddress~, the qocket

~i~:~i~~~r~itS:~~i~~~?1C~~i,!~QRAlCWA~03·201° 02~!;!1:1~4 "Oil Spill

All checks shall be made payable to the;'Environmental Protection Agency;"
I . ,,'li;'IJ~'!!;l'~~" ;;~it*Jyt!J!%l;f,i~"~;, 11· I .

All payments made by check' and sent by regularmail shall be addressed and
mailed to: 1 ' ·fo'·I:',:"" "':
I:·'lll', '. . .

U.S. Environmental Protection Agen
Fines and Penalties "'ii'f: t.· . '
Cincinnati :Finance Cent~r. 'ti,! ..•.l,..... .".'
P.O. Box 979077 ".... ,!L'i

I ", ·J,c·, -,.

St. Louis, MO 63197.90?O,v;l:i] :: '.
I

.' , .. ~".~" , ;.,
o (' I" -', _" ",'

The Customer Service contact for the above method of payment is Nata,lie

Pearson at 1314-418-40~~,;I'I;'~d~i, . ' .' .•. "t¥~Vlt, .; I
All payments made by check and sent b . owemight delivery service shall be
addressed and sent to: .. ;.j~... !" ' ' , .

I \'":~':J:'!"
U.S. Environmental Protection Agenc " Fines'an

U.S, Bank I .. Alt:"'j};;
I005 Com~ention Plaza. '., .•... ii..···.·.·.'..·::'Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL:. j ;l
St.LoUls,M063101 ",Tf:

.r:<:~!I·;h.·..··.!V(lf\'r

d.
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f
The Customer Service contact for the above method of
Pearson at) 14-418-4087.

I r , .
All electrOnic wire transfer payillents
Ii'

I ,

Federal Reserve Baclc ~~l"_.._
ABA ~ 021030004

, '
Account = 68010727 I
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33
33 I Liberty Street i I

New York, NY 10045 i
Fi~ld Tag 4200 oWie Fedwire message should

; • I .' j, ,I,'"
EnvIrOnmental PrOtection Agency' .

I Ii I \J' "~'f" . " .
The Federal Reserve Bank of New York Qustomer Service phone number for the

above method ofpayillent i~. 212-720L~gob)~;~'i",;,nqh.3' . I

All payilllnts thrOugh the ~utJl11~;;dr~;~'t!:~:~i(~~'~)~'aISO knoWn as

Remittance Express (REX),Sha.. II be di~~de'd t?:;;;i;J1;~t\",11
I I! fi~P'~''';~i;;,qi'''~qp:'" . .

Automated Clearinghouse (ACH) for receiving U.S. currency
Ii' ..',.,.; "I .

PNC Bank ,:' ~..,: ... ~,;,,; 'irL. \. .
808 17th Street NW ~ '('" 1* .•..... •
Washington DC 20074 ~3' '\i;h' f·

I

'. '~~':~~!:~ ".. -' l; ,',," i}" .'; '.
! I . "T""'!' '; .

ABA = 051036706 i I .. ·;+5.;;,.~,ii&"ti

~~~~~~~~enn~~~~;;c-ti~~e~~b~c p J'~;ll:;.t l .
Account 310006' " . : r' -:.
CTX Format I.. ~~';; 'I,

I I" ill j~" j," '!;;
I I 'j' -1" ~ c,

The Customer Service contactJor the above method of ., is Jessc White at

301-887-6.548. I.,. i. ·.••.t.. ·fc;";' . .' I, ,., . '''f' .
I I' i .' ,.". • I

There is an on-line payillen,t option a~ailabie thrOugh the, Department 9fthe
Treasury.: This payillent option can &e actessed frOm; WWW.RAY.GOV. Enter

sfo 1.1 in1the search field a~d !omPlt.l~,;jtif-;:lred tleldil in the [foml.

At the same time that any payillent is made, Respondent shall mai I copies of any

~r~~:;:r~~~mg check, or wrr nO~lfl~1h~ ,ooli,m'og·· "",wo'dw'"

Ms. Lydia Guy! I . 'rt;;:,
R!,gional Hearing Clerk (3Rq'OO).
U.S. EnvirOnmental Protection Agcncvj, I .... ,,-

i
I:
1

h.

g.

f.

e.

I

..-:I..J.:.!.".__.~·,_ll·_~1
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~ ;

j
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I'
f":

I'
Region III I,

I'
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
iii

I Iand to i' ,
I ] !

: ( I

Da~iel L. Isales (3E0' 10)
Enyironmental Science Center ,
U.S. EnvIronmental Protection .~g~ncy, Region 11(,
701 Mapes Road ! ! ..t>, ?"
Fort Meade, MD 207.55-5350 .A: ..

I I I ' J< ..
I I" I ,,<.. ~

In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.3, any debt owed to the EPA as a result of
R d '" '1 k . I" I· I • h I hespon ent s 131 me to ma e Ilme y payments 111 accordance WIt Paragrap s 49 and 50,
above, shall be resolved by negotiationbetwe1en tHe EPA and Respondent or by! referral

to the General Ac~ountingOffice. ill ;;j; ". .' . Ail': •.
EFFECT OF SETTLEMENT .L; li ltli.

L i' '¥;'ii"'<'~~b}'+~~~:jf:" . ,
Payment of the penalty specified in Paragrapn 45,i~bov~, in the\nanner set forth in
Paragraphs 49 and 50, above, shall constitute Ifull and final satisfaction of all ci'vi I claims
for penalties which Complainant may have under RCRA and the tWA, \01' the!specific
violations alleged in Counts I through III, abdve. C'ompliance with this (I'AFO Ishall not

be a defense to any action commence.d 'at anyll....I...m........•..~...I•..D.I.~.~.r •.~•.•.~._•.1).. '.0•.' tl..l.e•..r ..'.... 'll.)lat.ion.
1

of the federal
laws and regulatIOlns admlllIstered YyA.. ·((,ttt~~:ra.·<~~{r'~: .1 I

I RESERV~T~ON .O~,~~~.~~~ '-I~'I I
This CAFO resolves only the civil claims forimonetary penalties for the Wecifl,c
violations alleged in the CAPO. EPA reserves the' right to commence action against any
person, including Respondent, in response to lany tondition Which' EPA determines may
present an imminent and substantial endangefment to the public h'ealth, ~ublic )vclfarc, or
the environment. In addition, this settlement lis subject to all limitations on the ,scope of
resolution and to the reservation of rights set fOl1hjin Section 22. \,8(c) ofIthe 1

Consolidated Rules of Practice. Further, EPA reserves any rights,and ren
1

1cdies available
I' ' ,

to it under RCRA and CWA, the regulations promulgated thereunder, and any other
federal laws or regulations for which EPA has ju+diction, to enforce thJ provisions of
this CAFO, following its flling with the Regi6nal Hearing Clerk. Respohdenl feserves all
available rights and defenses it may:ha~e to defend itsclfin any S~CI1 acdon. I

~ I . r li<;:~I"f¢~£j;;¥i\,r'.r!k

i FULL AND FIN~L SA~,~S~~~;I~N. «, .
This CAPO constitutes a settlement'by'EPA ~f·~I·~~t~~';orCi~;rpenalqes putant to
Section 9006 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6991e, and SeCtions 309 and3ll ofIthe CYVA, 33
U.S.c. §§ 1319 and 1321, for the speciflc vio'latiohs alleged in thi's CAF0. This CAFO

, I

j. '13
I
,

i
,
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For Respondent:

~/J~/MtJ1
Date

I

,~

V
!

I

i
I U

I

, t
l ,.~~~
I I,'

constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of parties r~garding settlemcnt of
all claims pertaining to specific violations alldged herein, and there are n6 I

representations, warranties, covenants, terms, lor c6nqiti?~sagre?d upon between the

parties other than t!hose expressed in! this CA1~ . ""··j·;~:ll{ft~' .,,1

I ANTIDEFICIENCY~,C,T~,i.~ , ",f:';":, '
Failure to obtain a~equate funds or lpp~opriat~I~~~~<li~~f~~n~;~t~I~:esnot release
Respondent from i,ts obligation to comply witr RG~ and the CWA, thelapplidablc
regulations thereunder, or with this CAFO. Nothi6g in this CAFO shalll\e intehJreted to
require obligation ,or payment of fu~ds in viol1atiod ofthe Aptideficiency IAct, 3!1 U.S.c. §
1341. I .L.' ';"",,;,;;,,,:ji',U ',1

I ~ 'W' , }~~;~f'~'~";.;'ifY, '

iAUTHORITY ~OIBINDt,~(:~~~~T~~~:;',~.'
The undersigned r~prescntative of Respondent c~'1ifie'sthathe or,~he is fully a~thonzed

::;:~d~::,~;:;~;;:;.",~;m" 'h,H'":~lt':~~il~T"' 'g",~"" ,,,1
EFFECTIVE DATE, "\,',',','2';>'':'" "I': '

I ' 1;1 ,.,t, ." \ ," ,d,', , I, I· ;'~'I ,:'1'~'"1;/t~~},;:~.\ :t-'~~;';"~':n#~;.:' '.

The effective date of the Consent Agreement is the date on which the Final Order is filed

with the Regional Hearing Clerk. I, i'l?,I,.;',!:,';' "',:,*/ I

I' i \!'l' tJl
ii, -,:::~'- :_M~;; " ~~~J~

: "J' ., lrI United States Postal Servicel ,
I I 'It";' ""< ", '" ; "j: , :I! '141,0;" ~iH<:;;,;i;.,!"

+r~~r I :~;j2
! Penny ~embrick <~>:Hl .
I Manager, U~PS Vehicle Maintenance
. 1001 School !Street·, '
j Richmohd, \\A
I.
i'
\
r
j;,
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For Complainant:

\ 0 \ 1'\ \ "\

Date

II (f C!6J
D~te



Facility.

I .

FINALORDE,
'i, ,1' ·'f " . ' I. .1,· ..... . •

Complamant, the Director of the Office of Eflforcement, Compliance, ana Environmental
• .' • : I j. I , ' I I

JustIce, U.S. Envlfonmental Protection Agency - RegIOn III, and Respondent, the United States
Postal Service, have executed a document entiVed "9ons¥t Agreement,'!., whichlr here~y ratify
as a Consent Agreement In accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice (iJoverrimg the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties ~nd thS Rev:ocationiTermiJi'ation oj· Susp~nsion of
Permits ("Consolidated Rules of Practice"),'. 40 C.F.Ri. PartI 22, with specific refe~ence 10 Scctions

< I, I I I

22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3). The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement are accepted

by the undersigned and incorporated into th:is~in~IO.\.~.".~~~si,ffi.~!ll.>~.,.,~.~,.~fo,.rt.,h at l~ngth berein.
I . 1,1 \.n·,~~,q:~~'··""'j;'~1 I

Based on the representations of the parties sel forth in' the Consent Agreement, II have, 'I 1. )"." 'i" .' " I I

determined that the penalty assessed herein:is based UPOl; I~:co?sideratio~ of the factor~ set forth
in Section 9006(c) of the Resource Conservation and I Recovery Act, 42 U.S.c. ~1699Ie(c),
EPA's November 1990 Penalty Guidance f?r Violatipns 9fUST Regulat~,ons. the fact~rs sct forth
in Section 309(g) of the C,WA, 33 U.S.C 9;] 3' 9(g). rPAis 1~95 Interi"1Clean I,Vaterl·Jet
Settlement Penalty Policy, the factors set forth 'in Sec,tion 31 L?fthe CWJ;., 33 ul.s.c. § 1321,
EPA's 1998 Civil Penalt)i Policy Jar Sectio;] 311 (b)(f)(Ul~1 SeeJ!on 311 (j) ojthe IClean; Water
Act. and the Consolidated Rules of Practice'. IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Respondent pay

, • I I I I

a penalty of FORTY ONE THOUSAND, FIVE H~NDf-EDAND FU::ry EIGHT I

DOLLARS ($41,558.00) in accordance with the for1goin,g C?,nsent Agr~ement.1 PaYJllent shall
be made in the manner set forth in the foregoing Consent \<\.greement. Payment shall reference

I -j - I I

Respondent's name and address as well as the EPA Dlocket. Nu,mber Final Order (Docket
No. RCRNCWA-03-20IP-0026). ' ,",' 'i I

r Ii ,- ,"'<' "--':" fI' , ,

~v.,' .t!n .
,~.J 'jNti.. . I

'f 'I'." '. .1j~j~j(. . I

BEFORE THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION iII¥§:O~". '.,

1650 Arch sfree~;~~~~i ,:
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

I.. I .

INRE:ll

····f·h
U"kd :::::::::~S"Tl
Norfolk Vehicle Maintenance Facility
600 Church Street
Norfolk, Virginia 23501



NOV 13 2009

Date


